Public Document Pack
Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover
Kent CT16 3PJ
Telephone:
Fax:
DX:
Minicom:
Website:
e-mail:

(01304) 821199
(01304) 872453
6312
(01304) 820115
www.dover.gov.uk
democraticservices
@dover.gov.uk

4 April 2018

Dear Councillor
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the HOMELESSNESS PROJECT
ADVISORY GROUP will be held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Thursday 12
April 2018 at 5.00 pm when the following business will be transacted.
Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Kate Batty-Smith
on 01304 872303 or by e-mail at kate.batty-smith@dover.gov.uk.
Yours sincerely

Chief Executive
Homelessness Project Advisory Group Membership:
J S Back (Chairman)
P M Brivio
M D Conolly
B Gardner
K E Morris
AGENDA
1

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
To note appointments of Substitute Members.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Page 4)
To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be
transacted on the agenda.

1

4

MINUTES (Pages 5-8)
To confirm the attached notes of the meeting of the Group held on 13 December
2017.

5

TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 9-10)
The Group’s Terms of Reference are attached for information only.

6

HOMELESSNESS PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 11-13)
To consider the attached report.

7

TASK LIST UPDATE (Pages 14-18)
To consider the attached paper.

8

IMPLEMENTATION OF HOMELESS REDUCTION ACT (Pages 19-21)
To consider the attached paper.

9

HOMELESSNESS AUDIT (Pages 22-23)
To consider the attached paper.

10

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (Page 24)
The recommendation is attached.
MATTERS WHICH THE MANAGEMENT TEAM SUGGESTS SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE AS THE REPORT CONTAINS EXEMPT
INFORMATION AS DEFINED WITHIN PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS INDICATED AND IN RESPECT OF WHICH
THE PROPER OFFICER CONSIDERS THAT THE PUBLIC INTEREST IN
MAINTAINING THE EXEMPTION OUTWEIGHS THE PUBLIC INTEREST IN
DISCLOSING THE INFORMATION

11

PROJECT UPDATE (Pages 25-27)
To consider the attached paper.

12

DEVELOPMENT OF INTERIM HOUSING FOR HOMELESS PEOPLE (Pages 2832)
To consider the attached report.

2

Access to Meetings and Information


The provisions of Part Vl of the Local Government Act 1972, The Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 and the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 do
not apply to meetings of this Advisory Group so as to require its meetings to be open
to the public.
Notwithstanding the above, the Council will, whenever possible, conduct meetings of
the Advisory Group in public in furtherance of its commitment to openness and
transparency. However, there may be occasions on which the nature of the business
to be transacted requires members of the public to be excluded from the meetings or
parts of them.



All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on
the front page of the agenda. There is disabled access via the Council Chamber
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer. In addition, there is a PA
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.



Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from
our website www.dover.gov.uk. Minutes are normally published within five working
days of each meeting. All agenda papers and minutes are available for public
inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.



If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Kate Batty-Smith,
Democratic Services Officer, telephone: 01304 872303 or email: kate.battysmith@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.

3

Declarations of Interest

Agenda Item No 3

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)
Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any
matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any
dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.
Other Significant Interest (OSI)
Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the
nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's
procedure rules.
Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)
Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at
the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.
Note to the Code:
Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member,
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in
some cases a DPI.

4

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item No 4

Minutes of the meeting of the HOMELESSNESS PROJECT ADVISORY GROUP
held at the Council Offices, Whitfield on Wednesday, 13 December 2017 at 5.00
pm.
Present:

1

Chairman:

Councillor K E Morris

Councillors:

P M Brivio
M D Conolly
N S Kenton
K E Morris
N A G Richards

Officers:

Director of Finance, Housing and Community
Head of Strategic Housing
Housing Options Manager
Accounting Technician (Housing and Leasehold)
Democratic Services Officer

Also in
attendance:

Councillor S F Bannister
Councillor R J Frost

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
The Democratic Services Officer advised that, in the absence of Councillor J S
Back, the Chairman of the Homelessness Project Advisory Group, there was a
requirement to elect a chairman for the meeting.
It was moved by Councillor M D Conolly and duly seconded and
RESOLVED: That Councillor K E Morris be elected Chairman of the meeting.

2

APOLOGIES
It was noted that apologies for absence had been received from Councillors J S
Back and B Gardner.

3

APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
It was noted that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, Councillors N S
Kenton and N A G Richards had been appointed as substitute Members for
Councillors J S Back and B Gardner respectively.

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
It was noted that there were no declarations of interest.

5

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Group considered the Terms of Reference that had been approved by Cabinet.
RESOLVED: That the Terms of Reference be noted.

6

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

5

That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the business on the grounds that the
items to be considered involve the likely discussion of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.
7

MANAGEMENT OF HOMELESS HOUSEHOLDS IN THE DOVER DISTRICT
Members received a presentation from the Director of Finance, Housing and
Community. He advised that some of the comparative data and project information
were sensitive and should not, therefore, be disclosed.
The Group was advised that there had been an increase in homelessness
presentations and acceptances by the Council. These, together with the increased
use of temporary (i.e. Bed & Breakfast (B&B) and nightly paid) accommodation, the
length of stays in what was expensive accommodation and a shortage of Council
and private ‘move on’ (or permanent) accommodation had placed significant
financial pressure on the Council. The cost of B&B and nightly accommodation fell
largely on the General Fund, although homeless households or individuals
accommodated in such accommodation would be able to claim Universal Credit or
Housing Benefit and, as such, the Council could recover some of these costs.
Compounding the situation was the fact that the Council had not been very diligent
in recovering charges associated with B&B accommodation and benefit payments.
Comparing data with other councils was difficult due to the lack of standardisation in
data collection. However, a review undertaken by an independent consultant
indicated that the Council was likely to be under-recording homelessness enquiries.
This then distorted Dover’s figures in such a way that the ratio of acceptances to
presentations was very high when compared with neighbouring authorities.
In response to Councillor N A G Richards, the Housing Options Manager estimated
that there were 13 rough sleepers in Dover, an annual figure based on information
gathered from Porchlight, the night reach shelter and the street pastor. It was
acknowledged that some individuals did not wish to interact with the authority or
receive help to address their situation.
The Head of Strategic Housing advised that no trend had been detected in more
applicants coming from London. Most of those presenting were from the district or
neighbouring authorities. There was anecdotal (but no hard) evidence that
landlords were being offered better rates from London authorities.
To achieve improvements, internal processes had already been reviewed, and the
use of home visits and family mediation would be increased. The Private Sector
Housing team was also planning to hold a landlords’ forum in February to try and
increase the amount of ‘move on’ accommodation available. Other measures
included acceptances being approved at a more senior level and earlier intervention
with landlords whose tenancies were coming to an end.
The Housing Options Manager added that more work needed to be done to educate
people that council housing was limited and that, even if the Council found
emergency accommodation for them, they would be expected to find their own
permanent accommodation quickly. The Department for Communities and Local
Government had set up a new advisory support team which was due to visit and
provide support to Dover. A Senior Housing Options Officer had been recruited and
was exploring various schemes and measures, including lodgers and cooperation

6

with Ashford Borough Council. It was clarified that the Council had plans to
establish its own social lettings agency which was considered preferable to using
housing associations. At the suggestion of Councillor Richards, she undertook to
look at Southern Housing which offered a mix of private and social housing.
The Head of Strategic Housing reported that there had been challenges managing
the recovery of income due to the processes associated with Universal Credit.
However, the Government had undertaken that, from 1 April, people in temporary
accommodation would revert to receiving Housing Benefit which would be paid
direct to the landlord. Whilst this change would assist the Council in its budgeting,
Universal Credit would continue to be a challenge. That said, improvements had
already been made in recovering payments due under Universal Credit or Housing
Benefit.
In response to Councillor M D Conolly, the Head of Strategic Housing advised that
the independent consultant had worked with the team and did not consider it underresourced or overloaded, although it was too early to assess the potential impact of
the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. The Director of Finance, Housing and
Community added that the intention was to take stock and try to alleviate the
problem using existing resources.
In respect of efforts to increase the amount of alternative accommodation in order to
reduce the pressure on the General Fund, Members were advised that options
being explored included the leasing of two houses which had recently been
refurbished by a charitable organisation. Leasing these would be cheaper than
using temporary accommodation and the costs incurred would fall to the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account. Eight properties had also been purchased for this
purpose and another purchase was in the pipeline. In addition, several sites were
being considered on which to put modular housing. These dwellings would be
permanently sited and used as temporary accommodation.
Whilst shared
accommodation for single people was also being looked at, there were difficulties
related to collection of rent, tenancies, etc.
In response to Councillor K E Morris, the Director of Finance, Housing and
Community agreed that there was a need to explore several options in case some
proved undeliverable or were subject to delays.
The Senior Housing Options Manager reported on work that had already been
undertaken, such as looking at ways to help people aged 35 and under, and
attending ‘void’ meetings to ensure that Council accommodation was moved on
quickly. Referring to the presentation, the Group was advised that the number of
people in nightly paid accommodation had stayed the same but those in B&B
accommodation had gone down, and would decrease further once the January
figures were available. The number of housing acceptances had also dropped
sharply in October. Updates on these figures, including the proportion of
acceptances to presentations, would be given at future meetings.
Councillor Morris commented that income recovery figures also needed to be
factored into the savings projected by these projects. The Housing Options
Manager advised that, should there prove to be an over-provision of temporary
accommodation, properties purchased by the Council for this purpose could be
added to the stock of social housing to assist in reducing waiting lists. Councillor
Conolly commended the breadth of work and activities by Officers to address
homelessness.

7

The Head of Strategic Housing advised that it was hoped that an Officer would be in
place by the end of January to lead on a community-led housing initiative. He
acknowledged the benefits of pursuing the ‘No Use Empty’ scheme. Members were
also advised that Officers were working on a tenant incentive scheme which would
be advertised on the website and in reception.
In response to Councillor Richards, the Housing Options Manager undertook to
follow up complaints that the landlords of some temporary accommodation were
turning up without giving advance notice.
In response to Councillor Morris, the Housing Options Manager reassured Members
that Officers always looked at the underlying reasons for people presenting as
homeless and considered what preventative action could have been taken.
However, they often presented to the Council at a stage where it was too late to
take such action. Councillor Morris requested that the performance indicators and
charts be circulated monthly.
RESOLVED: (a) That a report, including income recovery rates, be circulated
monthly.
(b) That the next meeting be held in March.

The meeting ended at 6.50 pm.

8

Agenda Item No 5

HOMELESSNESS PROJECT ADVISORY GROUP
TERMS OF REFERENCE

Membership:





Portfolio Holder for Built Environment (Chairman)
Leader of the Council
Portfolio Holder for Corporate Resources and Performance
Two Representatives from the Labour Group

Terms of Reference:


To monitor the following trends relating to homelessness:
-

The number of households presenting as homeless
The size of household presenting
The reason for the homelessness application
The number of cases where homelessness was prevented and how it was
prevented
The number of applications accepted
The number of households placed in different types of temporary accommodation
The length of stay in the different types of temporary accommodation
The number of rough sleepers in the district



To consider performance data relating to the above benchmarked against other
comparable local housing authorities (LHAs).



To consider examples of good practice adopted by other LHAs and make
recommendations regarding their implementation by the Council.



To monitor the budget position relating to the use of various forms of temporary
accommodation.



To make recommendations regarding projects which will help reduce the levels of
homelessness/rough sleeping in the district and deliver alternative forms of
temporary and interim accommodation, e.g. modular housing, property acquisitions,
leasing of properties, purchase and leasing of land.



To monitor progress on the projects currently being progressed with the aim of
reducing the cost of providing temporary accommodation.



To monitor the Housing Revenue Account and Housing Initiatives Reserve and make
recommendations as to how these can be used to fund financially viable alternative
forms of temporary and interim accommodation.



To make recommendations regarding projects aimed at securing accommodation as
an alternative to providing temporary accommodation, e.g. social lettings agency.

9



To consider and make recommendations in relation to any amendments to the
Council’s Allocations Policy which are considered appropriate to help reduce
homelessness and the number of households in temporary accommodation.

OTHER MATTERS
Powers
The Group is not a decision-making body. It will consider matters falling within its Terms of
Reference and make recommendations to Cabinet on the same.
Frequency of Meetings
The Group shall meet as required by the Portfolio Holder for Built Environment.

10

Agenda Item No 6
Homelessness Performance Report
February 2018

Key Performance Indicators
The figures show the position as at the end of February 2018.
Number of Homelessness Cases

H1 Number of homeless applications
H2 Number of homeless cases accepted

Nov
3
28

Dec
7
10

Jan
25
15

Feb
19
26

Comments:
The cases coming through as homeless are priority cases which we have to accept as per current
legislation.
The categories are as follows:








Pregnant
Dependant children
Vulnerable elderly/ mental health
Emergency – fire/flood
16/17 year olds
Under 21 looked after, accommodated or fostered between 16-18 years old
Aged 21+ and vulnerable as a result of being looked after, accommodated or fostered
between 16-18 years old

Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP)
This protocol ensures that we take the necessary steps to avoid deaths on the streets by carrying
out prompt action to ensure that all known rough sleepers have the opportunity to have access
to shelter if it is believed that they are at risk due to sleeping rough during severe cold weather.
SWEP arrangements are triggered when the night time temperature is predicted to be zero
degrees Celsius or below for three consecutive nights. This arrangement is flexible and we work
in close partnership with the Dover night shelter.
SWEP was triggered on a number of occasions between 5 February 2018 to 5 March 2018.
The longest period of adverse weather was 21 February 2018 to 5 March 2018. 41 people were
accommodated in a B&B. The total cost to the district was £5385.00.

11

Use of temporary Accommodation
Nov-17

Dec-17

Jan-18
Av
Number stay
(days)

Feb-18
Number

Av
stay
(days)

110

30

97

36

100

30

85

8

126

6

82

Number

Av stay
(days)

Number

Av stay
(days)

B&B

42

93

29

124

26

H4

Self contained
units (nightly
paid)

40

138

33

134

H5

Shared units
(nightly paid)

9

67

8

102

H6

Total (B&B &
nightly paid)

91

H7

Private sector
leasing

5

300

5

331

4

407

5

351

H8

DDC owned
stock

7

69

10

64

9

68

13

71

H9

Housing
Association
stock

9

255

10

260

10

291

9

271

H10

Totals (all
types of TA)

112

129

95 79(147)

93

137

93

120

Ref

Types of TA

H3

70

70

66

Comments:
The totals in B&B went up slightly in February. The numbers in nightly paid are gradually reducing as
we continue to utilise our own DDC stock. As a result, the average time spent in TA is also going
down.
Our aim is to reduce the numbers in temporary accommodation further. Historically there was a
month on month increase in numbers in temporary accommodation, so it should be noted that the
numbers have remained static for January and February.
This number will reduce further as there are sixteen families already allocated to properties and as
soon as they become ready to let (they are currently with our void contractor), these families will
move into them.

12

Financial Position
Ave AprNov
H11
H12

Rent arrears on HRA units
Monthly spend on
temporary
accommodation

£90,214

Dec

Jan

Feb

£1,391

£3,942

£2334.60

£124,606

£74,034

£93,312

The increase in the monthly spend on TA reflects the increase in placements following the Christmas
break.
EKS manages the DDC owned properties rent accounts. A meeting was held to discuss and agree the
approach to ensure the process is consistent.

13

HOMELESSNESS PROJECT GROUP - TASK LIST
Since the last meeting the main points of progress to note are:

*
*
*
*

11 tasks have been completed, bringing the total to 18;
three are partially completed; and
three are on-going.
a comprehensive Internal Audit review has been commissioned and has started, in order to ensure that the service is operating optimally.

Outcomes of the completed tasks include:

*
*
*
*

an improved computer system making it easier for our customers to engage with Options staff to comply with the new duties of the Homelessness Reduction Act.
over £60k income generated from service charge invoices, easing the pressures on the General Fund;
reduction in nightly costs in our top 4 B&B providers, again easing General Fund pressures.
Tenant incentive scheme now live and has resulted in three households downsizing to date
For details of individual tasks see the table below.

Homelessness Project Group - Task List
Ref:

Tasks

RAG
Status

Updated:
Owner

Target
Completion
Date

ET/PM

On-going

03 April 2018
Comments

Statistical Review / Data Analysis
Develop KPIs for PAG Group reporting and
undertake regular performance
benchmarking against other LHAs
Prevention of Homelessness /
Homelessness Acceptance Processes

G

A new set of KPI's has been produced. Please refer to the performance report.

Agenda Item No 7

1

14

Homelessness Project Group - Task List
Ref:

Tasks

9

Review ICT options
- Better use of Locata
- Better use of spreadsheets
- Better use of tasks / calendar for reminders
- Other?

RAG
Status

G

Updated:
Owner

PM

Target
Completion
Date

31/03/18

03 April 2018
Comments

This action is partially completed. The contract was awarded to Locata. The new HPA2
system (which incorporates all the changes of the Homeless Reduction Act) is currently
being tested by staff and it is going well. The system will be reviewed follwing the
introduction of the Homeless Reduction Act.

Case Management and Cost Recovery
11 Finance Project
- Appoint to post
- Scope project
- Review all existing cases
- Consider review of previous cases
- Undertake process review & implement
changes

Officer in post. Work proceeding. As at 22/3/18 over £60k income generated from service
charge invoices. Now working on UC income. Project ongoing
G

BW

On-going

Access to alternative, lower cost interim
accommodation eg properties leased
from other landlords, charities etc
15 Contact local letting agents
- Establish working relationships
- Discuss tenant options
- Understand landlord issues
16 Review use of nightly paid accommodation
- Costs vs B&B
- Impact on private rental availability
- Reduce / cease use?
- Contact landlords directly?

G

ET

On-going

G

ET/PM

31/12/17

The Housing Options Officers wil continue to visit local estate agents in order to develop
relationships and procure private rented properties. A landlord's forum was held on 7
February 2018 to discuss closer working. A presentation on the Homeless Reduction Act
was made.
This action is partially completed. A meeting was held with Paramount to discuss the
future of temporary accommodation. A cost calculator was created. A meeting has been
schedueld with the DWP to discussand assess each case to decide whether they are
better off on UC or HB when the changes come in on 11 April 2018.

Completed Tasks
Undertake statistical analysis of homeless
stats for several years across all Kent
Districts to identify outliers and areas where
we may learn.

Initial benchmarking exercise completed Completed
G

15

Homelessness Project Group - Task List
Ref:

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Tasks

Reduce the support service charge no longer
being paid through HB for Oak Housing
leased properties
Explore potential lease of accommodation
from Emmaus
Walk through homelessness process from
presentation to acceptance and rehousing.
Visit and / or Invite peer review from a "low
acceptance" authority.

RAG
Status

Updated:
Owner

Target
Completion
Date

03 April 2018
Comments

Agreement reached with Oak that they will restructure their rents so that the full rent is
eligible for HB Completed

G
G

PM

G

ET

Meeting with Emmaus. No suitable accommodation available for lease. Completed
Training workshop for staff facilitated by specialist consultant - Andy Gale Completed
Visit taken place to Gravesham Council. They use their own stock as temporary
accommodation thereby significantly reducing the cost of B&B. DCLG Housing and
Support Team (HAST) will be visiting Dover on 15 December 2017 to review our
processes and to offer support, where required. Completed
All our policies, procedures and process maps are being updated to take on board the
changes due to the Homeless Reduction Act legislation coming in on 2 April 2018.
Completed

G

ET

Review current processes & procedures,
comparing to Southwark and implementing
changes where appropriate.
- Update procedure manuals
- Introduce process flowchart

G

PM

Review allocations policy / procedure
- Consider joint applications to register for
friends / under 35s

G

PM

G

ET

Staff roles reviewed and specialist advice obtained. Generic role assessed as being most
appropriate model for smaller team. Completed

PM

A proposal was drafted but our legal team have pointed out that it may have legal
ramifications. A Government lodger information pack will be uploaded to our website asa
link to a suite of useful information. Completed

Review staffing & structure. Consider
options for specialist roles / utilising strengths
/ etc.
Consider options for advertising a lodgers
scheme
- Contact other LAs for examples
- Discuss with Legal any risks
- Develop proposal
Review options for discouraging parental
evictions
- Dartford model
- Other options?

This action was considered but it is not a viable option. Completed

G

G

PM

The Dartford model (paying £60 to parents to keep their young people at home) was
considered but it is not a viable option. Staff are carrying out home visits on all parental
evictions in order to work with them via mediation, behaviour agreement plans, etc.
Completed

16

Homelessness Project Group - Task List
Ref:

Tasks

10 Review DHP options
- Can Housing Options hold some of the
DHP budget?
- Review procedures with EKS
12 Develop Personal Housing Plan

13 Cease storage and kennelling fees (except in
exceptional circumstances) with immediate
effect
- Produce new factsheets for info
14 Review UC procedures
- Monitor income
- Challenge rejections
17 Negotiate better rates with TA providers
- Work with Emma / Dean
- Approach new providers
18 Prepare for landlord forum
- Advise changes
- Agree working way forward
- Develop relationships
20 Introduce process for reviewing void HRA
units to consider for interim use

Updated:

03 April 2018

Target
Completion
Date

RAG
Status

Owner

G

ET

EKS has been approached regarding holding some of the DHP pot but this is not a
popular proposal and it is still being discussed. The main issue is around a consistent
approach. Completed

G

PM

An electronic Personal Housing Plan has been drafted and is with staff for comment.
Once the IT procurement process has ended the plan will be to upload this to the system.
Completed

Comments

New procedures developed and implemented Completed
G

PM

G

PM

G

ET/PM

G

PM

G

ET

21 Implement shared tenancies on purchased
properties

G

PM

22 Tenant incentive scheme
- Review current scheme
- Work with EKH to market scheme

G

PM

31/12/17

The link person at DWP is working well with DDC. A UC flyer has been produced for
clients and a process map has also been developed for staff. Completed

31/12/17

A meeting was held with our top four providers and a reduction in costs was agreed. It
was decided that we would not approach new providers. Completed
The Landord Forum date has been set and a flyer is being drafted. This will go out to all
our current and prospective landlords. Completed
This happens at the moment, it has been agreed that this process would take into
account many more voids. Completed
Waiting for legal to finalise licence/non secure tenancy agreement Completed
TIS reviewed and new scheme developed. Finalising leaflet and marketing arrangements
Completed

C:\Users\kate.batty-smith\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\GXX0HZRK\[Task List v4with updates 3 April 2018.xlsx]Live Tasks

17

Appendix 5
Homelessness Project Group - Task List
Ref:

Tasks

2

Obtain levels of presentations & determinations
(or other suitable measure) for DDC for previous
3 years & current year to date

Obtain figures for average length of stay in temp
accom for DDC for previous 3 years & current
year to date
4 Update monitoring spreadsheet & add to shared
area
5 Obtain figures from other Kent LAs to compare
budget impact
10 Visit to Southwark Council
3

Updated:

04 October 2017

ET

Target
Completion
Date
13/10/17

Completed.

ET

13/10/17

Completed

G

PW

06/10/17

Completed

G

HL

13/10/17

Completed

G

ET

20/10/17

RAG
Status

Owner

Comments

G

G

Visit undertaken - suggested actions included on task list

C:\Users\kate.battysmith\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet
Files\Content.Outlook\GXX0HZRK\[Task List v4with updates 3 April
2018.xlsx]Live Tasks

18

Agenda Item No 8

Homeless Reduction Act (HRA) update 29 March 2018
Introduction
The Homeless Reduction Act comes into force on 3 April 2018. This is one of the
most significant changes to homeless legislation since the introduction of the original
Act in 1977.
The Act will mean that all local authorities will be required to:
*prevent more people from becoming homeless in the first place by identifying
people at risk and intervening earlier with solutions which work
*intervene rapidly if a homeless crisis occurs, so that it is brief and non recurrent
*help more people recover from and exit homelessness by getting them back on their
feet
* Detailed advice factsheets designed for the specific vulnerable groups listed below:







Care leavers
Former armed forces
People leaving custody
Victims of domestic abuse
People leaving hospital
People with mental health issues

These factsheets will be included on our website shortly. They will expand the advice
and information duty to all people and ensure that advice is tailored, clear and
specific.
*ensure all applicants who may be homeless or threatened with homelessness have
an assessment of their circumstances, housing needs and support needs carried out
Implications for Dover District Council:
The introduction of the new Act will mean an increase in workload and duties for
staff. It is anticipated that there will be:
*more applications
*more decisions
*changes in case management requirements
*an increase in review points
*a new Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government data collection
requirements
*a new focus on prevention, to help households to retain their accommodation,
where it is safe to do so.

19

Preparatory work undertaken to date:
A great deal of preparation has been taking place in the background and a summary
of the action taken to date is below;


Meetings have been held with various internal and external agencies in order
to bring all our partners on board and discussions have started about closer
joint working. This will be an ongoing action.



A landlord forum was held last month to start dialogue with our landlords.
Availability of private rented sector properties will be key to our success as
this will provide some of the move on accommodation which is required.



The duty to refer element of the Act will formally come into force in October
2018. An agency awareness forum is planned for 24 April 2018. engage with
all our voluntary and statutory agencies. A member of staff from the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government will facilitate this session.



A meeting is being set up with estate agents to discuss early intervention in
terms of rent arrears, ASB and any other tenancy breaches in private rented
properties. The message is that the earlier we start working with people, the
easier it may be to help people to retain their existing tenancy hence
preventing homelessness.



A meeting with East Kent Housing has also taken place to discuss closer
working, notifying us of tenancy breaches, Court action, eviction proceedings,
etc. at a very early stage. Early intervention is the key to ensure people stay in
their homes with the required support.



All policies, procedures and processes have been reviewed to ensure they
are HRA compliant and/or new ones written where required.



The website has been reviewed to ensure the information is HRA compliant
and where required information has been reviewed, updated or included. This
is an ongoing action as the website is being overhauled.



All staff have attended many HRA training sessions and webinars.
Factsheets, process maps and flow charts have been devised in order for
staff to have practical reference points.



It is estimated that a housing options interview may take approximately two
hours per person. We are looking at ways of reducing this without
compromising the time spent with each customer allowing them sufficient time
to put their case across.



Staff are booked on motivational interviewing techniques training in order to
ensure they ask the right questions, in the right way in order to get the
information they require to make the right decisions.

20



The first point of contact and triage has been reviewed to ensure effective
early intervention and homeless prevention. All contact will initially be via the
website.



The discharge of duty into a six month assured shorthold tenancy is also key
to the success of this Act and negotiations are underway with Ashford
Borough Council to work with them to secure private rented accommodation
via their social lettings agency.



IT is another key area and Locata was completely rebuilt to take on board all
the changes of the Act. This has made the process much easier as although
staff will still have to learn a new system, however, it broadly follows the same
path as the Act.



All staff have been trialling the personal housing plans with existing applicants
and they have also been using the Locata test system in order to be prepared
for 3 April 2018.

Challenges:
A key challenge is changing the culture of the team.
Staff have to let go of the “old way” and learn the “new way.” This is essential to
improving the customer experience as the approach is completely different. It is so
easy to slip back into the “old way.” This will be closely monitored.
Various team building sessions and quizzes have been held and discussions about
our approach. This will be an ongoing action.
This new environment is unknown territory and we cannot predict whether there will
be a rush or a hush – huge demand for our services or business as usual.
There is a positive atmosphere in the office. Staff are understandably a bit
apprehensive about the changes but they are also excited about the changes and
are willing to make it work.

21

Agenda Item No 9

INTERNAL AUDIT BRIEF
HOMELESSNESS & HOUSING ALLOCATIONS 2018-19
Client: Dover District Council

APACE Job No:

Objectives and Scope of the Review:
To provide assurance that the Council deals fairly and efficiently with all homelessness
applications whilst:




Minimising the length of stay in temporary accommodation;
Minimising the cost to the Council of temporary accommodation; and
Maximising income from all available sources to cover the costs incurred.

The audit will examine / evaluate: Homelessness:
a) Follow-up the recommendations from the last audit.
b) Review the income and expenditure, caseload, trends, comparative PIs etc related to
homelessness to establish the areas of the service that require review.
c) Do managers have sufficient comprehensive and complete data and information to
understand and manage the trends, patterns, expenditure and income in homelessness
and the associated costs and their recovery.
d) Do performance trends indicate a clear direction of travel? How do they compare with
other authorities?
e) Are all those who are homeless properly assessed and accepted where we have a duty to
house?
f)

Are all those not homeless properly assessed and not accepted?

g) Is the length of stay for all those in temporary accommodation minimised?
h) Are appropriate steps taken to maximise the amount of permanent accommodation
available from private and public stock in order to move households out of temporary
accommodation?
i)

Are all steps taken to maximise the income and benefits available to households?

j)

Are all steps taken to maximise the recovery of costs and rents (HRA) from households
while they remain in temporary accommodation? Is there a trend of increasing expenditure
recovery?

k) Are the costs of temporary accommodation to the council minimised, and the least
expensive TA given priority?
l)

Are the processes operated by the team sufficient (both in design and compliance) to
optimise the operation?

m) Is the structure and work allocation of the team optimal? Would dedicated specialists in
specific areas, such as income recovery and admin improve performance?
If you have any queries during the review please contact the Auditor by email or on the following
relevant extension number: Dover – 2145, Shepway – 3499 and Thanet - 7189.

22

n) Are HRA stock vacancies used appropriately to move households out of temporary
accommodation?
o) Are the council’s homelessness policies and processes appropriate to the service
requirements?
p) Are the council’s homelessness policies and processes complied with?
q) Ascertain whether the Council’s financial liabilities are being minimised through the
effective use of housing benefits to recover the costs of emergency accommodation.
r) Ascertain whether appropriate controls are in place within the rent deposit scheme to
ensure that the recovery of deposits is maximised.
The basis of the review will be determination of procedures through discussion with key officers
and the performance of test checks / walk through checks to confirm that procedures are adhered
to and appropriate.
Corporate Objective and or Corporate Risk Register Links:
There has been a continued steady increase in homelessness at district level and homelessness
is likely to be circa £750k overspent against the original 2017/18 budget and is the largest single
source of financial pressure on the council; therefore managing the service appropriately and with
the greatest financial efficiency is critical.
Although there is a general increase in homelessness, the available statistics appear to indicate
that the experiences and responses vary significantly from district to district and therefore, given
the importance of this issue, it is essential that the way in which the council responds to this
pressure is optimised.
Homelessness - As part of the consultation on this brief, please advise us of any changes in the
systems, personnel or governing legislation since the time of the last review; which concluded
Substantial Assurance and was finalised on 01-08-2017.
Housing Allocations - As part of the consultation on this brief, please advise us of any changes in
the systems, personnel or governing legislation since the time of the last review; which concluded
Substantial Assurance and was finalised on 05-02-2016, and the subsequent follow up which was
then finalised on 28-06-2016 and also concluded Substantial Assurance.
Timescale, Contact and Resources:
The proposed start date for the review is circa March/April 2018 and the review has been
allocated 20 days. The auditor for this review will be Lee Jones.
Agreed With: Mike Davis.
Auditor: Lee Jones

Title: Director of Finance, Housing & Community.
Brief date: 16-02-2018 v1

Prepared By: Simon Webb

: 20-02-2018 v2
: 21-02-2018 v3

If you have any queries during the review please contact the Auditor by email or on the following
relevant extension number: Dover – 2145, Shepway – 3499 and Thanet - 7189.

23

Agenda Item No 10

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL
NON-KEY DECISION
HOMELESSNESS PROJECT ADVISORY GROUP – 12 APRIL 2018

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Recommendation
The provisions of Part Vl of the Local Government Act 1972, The Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 and the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 do
not apply to meetings of this Advisory Group so as to require its meetings to be open
to the public.
Notwithstanding the above, the Council will, whenever possible, conduct meetings of
the Advisory Group in public in furtherance of its commitment to openness and
transparency. However, there may be occasions on which the nature of the business
to be transacted requires members of the public to be excluded from the meetings or
parts of them.
On this occasion the public will be excluded from the meeting for the following items
of business:
Item Report
Project Update

3

Development of Interim Housing for
Homeless People

3

Information relating to
the financial or
business affairs of any
particular person
(including the authority
holding that
information)

24

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item No 11

Document is Restricted

25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Item No 12

Document is Restricted

28

